
Agenda - Y Pwyllgor Cyfrifon Cyhoeddus
Lleoliad:
Ystafell Bwyllgora 3 - Senedd
Dyddiad: Dydd Mawrth, 8 Mawrth 2016
Amser: 09.00

I gael rhagor o wybodaeth cysylltwch a:
Fay Buckle
Clerc y Pwyllgor
0300 200 6565 
SeneddArchwilio@Cynulliad.Cymru

 

1 Cyflwyniadau, ymddiheuriadau a dirprwyon
(09.00)  

2 Papurau i’w nodi
(09.00)  

Llythyr gan Archwilydd Cyffredinol Cymru
(Tudalennau 1 - 20) 

3 Buddsoddiad Llywodraeth Cymru yn Isadeiledd Band Eang y 
Genhedlaeth Nesaf: Trafod ymatebion i adroddiad y Pwyllgor
(09.05-09.15) (Tudalennau 21 - 32) 

PAC(4)-09-16 Papur 1 – Ymateb Llywodraeth Cymru
PAC(4)-09-16 Papur 2 - Llythyr gan Archwilydd Cyffredinol Cymru 
PAC(4)-09-16 Papur 3 - Llythyr gan y Cadeirydd at y Dirprwy Weinidog Sgiliau a 
Thechnoleg
PAC(4)-09-16 Papur 4 – Gwybodaeth bellach gan Lywodraeth Cymru

4 Cronfa Fuddsoddi Gwyddorau Bywyd Cymru
(09.15-10.30) (Tudalennau 33 - 53) 

Papur briffio gan y Gwasanaeth Ymchwil

------------------------Pecyn dogfennau cyhoeddus ------------------------



James Price - Dirprwy Ysgrifennydd Parhaol - Grŵp yr Economi, Sgiliau a Chyfoeth 
Naturiol, Llywodraeth Cymru

Gareth Bullock - Cadeirydd, Cyllid Cymru ccc

5 Cynnig o dan Reol Sefydlog 17.42 i benderfynu gwahardd y 
cyhoedd o’r cyfarfod ar gyfer y busnes canlynol:
(10.30)  

Eitem 6 

6 Cronfa Fuddsoddi Gwyddorau Bywyd Cymru: Trafod y dystiolaeth 
a ddaeth i law
(10.30-11.00)  



Y Pwyllgor Cyfrifon Cyhoeddus | Public Accounts Committee 
PAC(4)-09-16 PTN1

Mr Darren Millar AM 
Chair of the Public Accounts Committee 
National Assembly for Wales 
Cardiff Bay 
Cardiff CF99 1 NA 

Archwilydd Cyffredinol Cymru 
Auditor General for Wales 

24 Heol y Gadelrlan I Cathedral Road 
Caerdydd I Cardiff CF11 9LJ 

Fron I Tel: 029 20 320500 
Info@audit.wales I post@archwillo.cymru 

l'MW.audit.wales I l'MW.archwillo.cymru 

Date: 
Our ref: 
Page: 

2 March 2016 
HVT 12S14/fgb 

1 of 2 

MANAGEMENT OF DIRECT PAYMENTS BY LOCAL AUTHORITIES 

In December 2015, I wrote to you confirming that I would carry out a desk-top review on 
how councils are currently managing Direct Payments for adults. This was in response 
to a letter regarding Direct Payments at Swansea City Council which you passed to me 
for consideration. The attached annex provides my findings. 

My overall conclusion is that the take up of Direct Payments is low and local authority 
policies, administration and management arrangements are not always supporting 
vulnerable people to live independently. I reached this conclusion because: 

• the number of individuals receiving Direct Payments and the amount spent is 
small compared to England; 

• local authorities policies, practices and promotional activity are not supporting 
vulnerable people to apply for and use Direct Payments; and 

• over half the local authorities in Wales do not have sufficient Direct Payment 
management arrangements to assure themselves and the public that value for 
money is consistently being delivered. 

The attached annex provides a fuller briefing on my findings. Whilst my work has shown 
that the use of Direct Payments is growing, the rate of improvement remains low and 
progress has been slow. The standards of service vary widely and current practices are 
not consistent enough or of sufficient quality to support vulnerable people to live 
independently. It is questionable whether these services provide value for money. 

I have also made a series of recommendations for Welsh Govemment and local 
authorities which, in the first instance, I would suggest the Committee consider. The 
Committee may wish to reflect whether it takes evidence from Welsh Government and 
local authorities to assure itself that Direct Payments are being managed effectively and 
vulnerable people are receiving the necessary help and assistance to live independently. 

Direct Line: 029 2032 0510 E-mail: huw.vaughan.thomas@audil.wales 

Tudalen y pecyn 1

Eitem 2.1



Date: 
Durref: 
Page: 

2 March 2016 
HVTI25141fgb 

20f2 

The Committee may also wish to consider what further action it might take in dialogue 
with the Health and Social Care Committee given the role of that Committee in 
overseeing the development of the Social Services and Well-being (Wales) Act 2014. 
For this reason I have copied this letter to the Chair of the Health and Social Care 
Committee and would welcome their view on the findings of my review and how the 
recommendations I have made can best be taken forward and addressed. 

1 
HUW VAUGHAN THOMAS 
AUDITOR GENERAL FOR WALES 

Enclosure: 

cc 

Briefing Paper on the Provision of Direct Payments for Adults 
by Welsh local authorities 

Mr David Rees AM, Chair, Health and Social Care Committee 

Tudalen y pecyn 2



_________________________________________________________________________ 
Page 1 of 18 

BRIEFING PAPER – PROVISION OF DIRECT PAYMENTS FOR ADULTS 
BY WELSH LOCAL AUTHORITIES 

Introduction 

1. Direct Payments were set up by the Community Care (Direct Payments) Act 
(1996) which came into force in April 1997 and was initially available only to a 
specific group of people qualifying for social care.  The Act gave local 
authorities in Great Britain and Northern Ireland, the powers to make cash 
payments to people under age 65 years with physical and sensory 
impairments, learning difficulties and mental health problems.  It was later 
amended to include older people, 16- and 17-year-olds, parents of disabled 
children and in England, Wales and Northern Ireland only, carers.  Changes set 
out in the Health and Social Care Act (2001) which came into effect in 2003, 
also made it a mandatory duty on all local authorities to offer Direct Payments 
to all eligible people requesting one.   

2. Direct payments enable individuals to purchase the assistance or services that 
the local authority would otherwise provide.  This is intended to give individuals 
control over their own life by providing an alternative to social care services 
provided by a local authority.  This helps to increase independence, promote 
social inclusion and enhanced wellbeing.  If Direct Payments are used 
effectively it may be possible to secure better outcomes for clients and carers.  
Increasing the take-up of Direct Payments – in particular for underrepresented 
client groups – can improve quality of life and reduce inequality.   

3. It is up to each local authority to decide what Direct Payments can and cannot 
be used for, and the amount that will be paid.  Welsh Government guidance1 
states that the Direct Payment must be equivalent to the local authority’s 
estimate of the reasonable cost of securing the provision of the service 
concerned (subject to any contribution from the individual recipient).  There is 
no limit on the maximum or minimum amount of Direct Payments, either in the 
amount of care they are intended to purchase, or on the value of the payments.  
In estimating the reasonable cost of securing the support required, local 
authorities should include associated costs without which the service could not 
lawfully be provided.  Local authorities should pay enough to cover the support 
that individuals have been assessed as needing, and users should not find 
themselves doing without those services because they cannot afford them.   

4. Whether services are provided by the local authority or via a Direct Payment, 
the client may have to pay towards the costs.  The most a contribution an 
individual has to pay is £60 a week.  A local authority can pay for the cheapest 
agency, which they deem as providing an ‘adequate service’, even if a more 
expensive agency that better meets the needs of the disabled or vulnerable 
person is available.   

 

                                                           
1 Welsh Government, Direct Payments Guidance, Community Care, Services for Carers and 
Children’s Services (Direct Payments) (Wales) Guidance, 2011. 

Tudalen y pecyn 3



_________________________________________________________________________ 
Page 2 of 18 

5. Local authorities are required to operate a procedure for handling and 
considering any complaints made in respect of the discharge of their social 
services functions.  In respect of Direct Payments, local authorities are also 
required to have a review process for service users who have a dispute over 
their assessed financial contribution for the services they receive.  Local 
authorities are also required to monitor Direct Payments arrangements to 
assure themselves that they are being correctly administered2.   

6. More recent legislation looks to make Direct Payments more flexible, less 
bureaucratic and more person centred.  It specifically requires that for local 
authorities, Direct Payments “must be made available in all cases where they 
enable personal wellbeing outcomes to be achieved.3” 

7. In November 2015, the Auditor General for Wales received correspondence 
raising concerns about a local authority’s management of Direct Payments, the 
different standards of service provided by local authorities and wider issues of 
the value for money of Direct Payments.  In response, WAO staff, on behalf of 
the Auditor General, undertook a short review confined  to assessing:  

 the number of adults in receipt of Direct Payments in each local authority 
in Wales as compared with the number in England; 

 local authorities performance when considering numbers of adults that 
take up direct payments, what adults use direct payments for, and how 
much each local authority spends on direct payments; 

 the effectiveness of local authority application and assessment and 
processes including the quality of public literature and review processes; 
and 

 local authorities management and review arrangements for their Direct 
Payment schemes to assure they are providing value for money and 
delivering better outcomes for service users. 

Findings 

8. The findings of this review are summarised in this briefing as a means of 
providing the Committee with information on the management and provision of 
Direct Payments for adults by local authorities.  The briefing draws on data and 
information provided by the Welsh Government, performance indicator returns 
and budgets from local authorities to StatsWales, a review of all 22 Welsh local 
authorities’ websites including public documentation, service user guidance and 
other relevant research.  I have also completed telephone interviews with a 
small number of local authorities in England and Wales. 

 

 

                                                           
2 The Welsh Government’s 2011 guidance specifically requires local authorities to establish “financial 
monitoring arrangements for audit purposes…..  [that] fulfil a local authority’s responsibility to ensure 
that public funds are spent to produce the intended outcomes.” 
3 Social Services and Well-being (Wales) Act 2014, Part 4: Sections 50-53, Duty to make Direct 
Payments. 

Tudalen y pecyn 4



_________________________________________________________________________ 
Page 3 of 18 

9. My overall conclusion is that the take up of Direct Payments is low and local 
authority policies, administration and management arrangements are not 
always supporting vulnerable people to live independently.  The findings which 
have led me to this conclusion are summarised in the following sections.  I have 
also included a series of recommendations to support improvement. 

Recommendations 
 

R1 Welsh Government should set clear standards on its expectations of 
local authorities from Direct Payment schemes ensuring that the public 
benefit and longer term planning intentions behind the Social Services 
and Well Being Act 2014 are more clearly integrated into Direct 
Payment guidance. 

R2 Welsh Government should work with local authorities and employment 
agencies to actively promote the benefits of working in the social care 
sector, and in particular to promote the recruitment of more personal 
assistants. 

R3 Local authorities should publish clear and appropriate eligibility criteria 
and permissible costs and work with user groups to improve the 
quality, consistency, content and accessibility of all information to 
support take up.   

R4 Local authorities should establish effective risk based monitoring and 
review arrangements that assure the public that money spent on Direct 
Payments is resulting in better outcomes for people needing care and 
support services. 

R4 Local authorities should support and promote innovation in Direct 
Payments schemes such as pooling resources, sharing transport and 
equipment, payment cards and other technologies to assure value for 
money. 

R5 Local authorities need to streamline their Direct Payment process from 
first enquiry through to resolution to reduce unnecessary delays, 
improve outcomes, and reduce the costs and problems caused by 
unnecessary bureaucracy. 

R6 Local authorities need to promote more innovation and social 
enterprise by encouraging users to pool resources and support each 
other to create new jobs and buy local services that can directly 
improve users’ well-being. 

R7 Local authorities need to collaborate more closely, and share 
resources and information by reviewing all the options and benefits of 
working together to deliver Direct Payments schemes whilst 
maintaining choice and highlighting all options for service users. 

 

Tudalen y pecyn 5



_________________________________________________________________________ 
Page 4 of 18 

Take up of Direct Payments is low and local authority policies, 
administration and management arrangements are not always 
supporting vulnerable people to live independently 

The number of individuals receiving Direct Payments and the amount spent is 
small compared to England 

10. This section focuses on the levels of take up of Direct Payments in Wales and 
compares performance with England.  We also summarise some of the key 
factors that have contributed to a greater growth in the use of Direct Payments 
in England than in Wales.  I also review the amount of money local authorities 
spend on Direct Payments comparing the changing patterns of expenditure 
within local authorities and across the different adult client groups, and the 
average payments overtime.   

11. The number of Direct Payments in Wales has risen steadily since their 
introduction in April 1997 and by 2014-15 there were 4,338 adults in receipt of 
Direct Payments in Wales.  Exhibit 1 shows the change in the proportion of 
adults receiving social care services who are in receipt of Direct Payments in 
2006-07 and 2014-15.  In 2014-15 the local authorities with the largest number 
of people receiving payments are Powys, Cardiff and Flintshire where over 
11 per cent of adult social care clients receive Direct Payments.  Conversely, 
the local authorities with the lowest number of people receiving payments are 
Caerphilly and the Isle of Anglesey. 

Exhibit One: Comparison of the proportion adults receiving social care 
services in receipt of Direct Payments in 2006-07 and 2014-15 by local 
authority and Welsh average  

 
Exhibit source: StatsWales, Performance management of adult's social services  
(PM2) data collection, Welsh Government, Indicator: CARE0006. 

0.0%

2.0%

4.0%

6.0%

8.0%

10.0%

12.0%

2006-07 2014-15

Tudalen y pecyn 6



_________________________________________________________________________ 
Page 5 of 18 

Direct Payments are used more extensively in England than in Wales 

12. Direct Payments are available in each country in the United Kingdom, although 
regulations that govern their use in each constituent country have changed 
since they were first established in 1996.  Exhibit 2 compares the proportion of 
adult social care service users who receive Direct Payments in England and 
Wales and shows that proportionally the number in receipt of Direct Payments 
in England is three times greater than the number in Wales.  In addition, the 
annual rate of change is far greater in England than Wales, particularly since 
2013-14.   

Exhibit Two: Proportion of adults in receipt of Direct Payments in England and 
in Wales between 2006-07 and 2014-15  

 

Exhibit source: Adults receiving services by local authority, client category and age group, 
StatsWales and Adult Social Care Statistics, Health and Social Care Information Centre. 
 

13. Whilst Direct Payments have been broadly endorsed throughout the UK, take 
up of Direct Payments in England has also been influenced by four key factors.  
Firstly, in England Direct Payments have moved to the heart of the UK 
government’s drive for increased user choice4.  Local authorities have been 
challenged to increase personal budgets and to make Direct Payments the 
preferred delivery method in social care purchasing.  For over ten years English 
local authorities have been given targets to increase take up and this is seen by 
academics as a key stimulant to the comparative rate of growth in England 
compared to the rest of the UK5.   

 

                                                           
4 TLAP, Best Practice in Direct Payments Support – a guide for commissioners, revised edition 
January 2012. 
5 Jose-Luis Fernandez, Jeremy Kendall, Vanessa Davey and Martin Knapp, Direct Payments in 
England: Factors Linked to Variations in Local Provision, Cambridge University Press, 2007. 

0.0%

2.0%

4.0%

6.0%

8.0%

10.0%

12.0%

14.0%

2006-07 2007-08 2008-09 2009-10 2010-11 2011-12 2012-13 2013-14 2014-15

Wales England

Tudalen y pecyn 7



_________________________________________________________________________ 
Page 6 of 18 

14. Secondly, a local authority’s procurement approach for social care services is 
seen as an important influence on the growth of Direct Payments.  The existing 
pattern of direct service provision, the extent of block purchasing agreements, 
the relative ease or complexity of local purchasing mechanisms, the 
demographics and geography of locality, and the ethos of the local authority all 
influence local planning and responses.  Research by the London School of 
Economics and Political Science6 in May 2007 also noted that the hourly pay 
rates for care staff paid by local authorities in Northern Ireland and Wales are 
“markedly lower” than in England and Scotland.  Lower rates of pay 
discourages people from becoming personal assistants7 and can block the 
potential to grow Direct Payment usage.   

15. Thirdly, research by the University of Leeds8 found that most English local 
authorities had a full-time member of staff who was responsible for taking Direct 
Payments forward in their area.  In other parts of the UK the person with 
responsibility was more likely to be part-time or involved in other areas of work 
for the local authority.  This meant that there was often more time and 
resources to develop Direct Payments in English local authorities compared 
with Scotland, Wales and Northern Ireland. 

16. Finally, the extent to which Direct Payments are, or are not, ‘championed’ by 
members and senior managers and the degree of knowledge about, or 
resistance to, Direct Payments amongst staff also impact on implementation at 
the front line.  Put simply, if more people take up Direct Payments there will be 
less money for services like day centres or respite care and there will be a 
knock on effect on directly provided local authority services and local authority 
staffing.  In England, Direct Payments are viewed by commentators as more 
likely to be championed than elsewhere in the UK and this has helped to drive 
increasing levels of take up. 

Welsh local authorities spend on Direct Payments is rising but proportionally 
accounts for less than 5 per cent of local authorities’ adult social care 
expenditure  

17. By giving individuals money in lieu of social care services, people have greater 
choice and control over their lives, and are able to make their own decisions 
about how their care is delivered.  By placing a mandatory duty on all local 
authorities to offer Direct Payments to eligible people requesting one, the 
expectation of Government is that there should be an increase the amount of 
funding that goes to Direct Payment.  The amount local authorities spend on 
Direct Payments for adults has risen in recent years, from £13 million in 
2006-07 to £48.8 million in 2014-15.   

 

                                                           
6 London School of Economics and Political Science, Direct Payments: A National Survey of Direct 
Payments Policy and Practice, May 2007. 
7 A personal assistant is someone who is usually employed to provide support for the things people 
need day to day to maintain their health and wellbeing, things that they are aiming to do and things 
they want to learn to do again.   
8 University of Leeds, A Postcode Lottery? Explaining the uneven implementation of Direct Payments 
in the UK, Mark Priestley and Debbie Jolly, Centre for Disability Studies, March 2006. 

Tudalen y pecyn 8



_________________________________________________________________________ 
Page 7 of 18 

18. Adults under 65 with physical disabilities, account for 35.8 per cent of all adults 
who currently receive Direct Payments in Wales, with the amount spent on 
Direct Payments for these clients doubling in the last decade.  All other client 
groups – older people, people with mental health needs and learning 
disabilities, have all seen smaller increases of between 2 per cent and 
4 per cent in the last decade – Exhibit 3.   

19. The biggest increases in expenditure between 2006 and 2015 have been in 
Cardiff where expenditure rose from £1.6 million to £5.1 million and Powys 
where the level rose from £1 million to £5.1 million.  The local authority which 
has seen the lowest increase in expenditure is the Isle of Anglesey which has 
only increased the amount spent on Direct Payments for eligible adults from 
£0.05 million in 2006-07 to £0.5 million in 2014-15.   

Exhibit Three: Proportion of local authority net current expenditure on 
Direct Payments by adult client groups between 2006-07 and 2014-15  

 

Exhibit source: Services for adults by local authority and client category, StatsWales. 
 

20. However, in terms of proportion of adult social care expenditure, the amount of 
the social care budget spent on Direct Payments is relatively small and has not 
risen significantly.  Exhibit 4 shows that in 2006-07, Direct Payments accounted 
for 1.5 per cent of adult social care expenditure or £13 million out of a total 
budget of £870 million.  By 2014-15 this had risen to 4.5 per cent or 
£48.8 million out of a budget of over £1 billion.   

  

0.0%

4.0%

8.0%

12.0%

16.0%

20.0%

2006-07 2007-08 2008-09 2009-10 2010-11 2011-12 2012-13 2013-14 2014-15

Total older people (aged 65 and over) Adults aged under 65 with a physical disability
Adults aged under 65 with learning disabilities Adults aged under 65 with mental health needs

Tudalen y pecyn 9



_________________________________________________________________________ 
Page 8 of 18 

Exhibit Four: Comparison of net expenditure on clients receiving Direct 
Payments and the total adult social care budget by Welsh local authority in 
2014-15  

 
Exhibit source: Social services revenue expenditure by client group, StatsWales. 

21. All local authorities have seen an increase in the proportion of their adult social 
care budget spent on Direct Payments but the amount of increase varies 
widely.  Exhibit 5 highlights that the local authority with the largest proportion of 
adult social care expenditure on Direct Payments is Powys which has seen an 
increase from 2.8 per cent in 2006-07 to 9.2 per cent in 2014-15.  
Comparatively the local authority with the lowest proportion of expenditure on 
Direct Payments is Caerphilly where there has only been a marginal increase 
from 0.8 per cent to 1.4 per cent. 

Exhibit Five: Net expenditure on Direct Payments by local authority and 
Welsh average in 2006-07 and 2014-15  

 
Exhibit source: LGFS0015, Social services revenue expenditure by client group (£ thousand), 
StatsWales. 

£0

£20,000,000

£40,000,000

£60,000,000

£80,000,000

£100,000,000

£120,000,000

Spend on Direct Payments in 2014-15 Total Adult Social Services Spend in 2014-15

0.0%
1.0%
2.0%
3.0%
4.0%
5.0%
6.0%
7.0%
8.0%
9.0%

10.0%

2006-07 2014-15

Tudalen y pecyn 10



_________________________________________________________________________ 
Page 9 of 18 

There is significant variation in the level of individual Direct Payments between 
local authorities, with the average individual payment ranging from between 
£6,000 to £20,000 per annum 

22. Average costing can be used to determine the average amount invested in 
activity and is a useful guide to show differences in expenditure for the same 
activity.  As a process, it is easy to calculate, especially where there are large 
volumes of similar work.  There are however some disadvantages particularly 
where the work may not be identical or unique which can make it difficult to 
accurately track costs on a per-service basis.  Nonetheless, for illustrative 
purposes average costing useful comparator of performance and allows for the 
range of payments to be identified and, through more detailed analysis, 
understood and addressed. 

23. The all Wales average net expenditure per client on Direct Payments has risen 
by 8.9 percent from £10,348 in 2006-7 to £11,249 in 2014-15.  Whilst this 
suggests a steady rate of increase in the average level of Direct Payments, the 
all Wales average masks some significant movement within the four main adult 
Direct Payment client groups as set out in Exhibit 6.   

Exhibit Six: The average level of Direct Payments for Welsh local authorities 
between 2006-07 and 2014-15 by adult client groups 

 

Exhibit source: Adults receiving services by local authority, client category and age group and 
LGFS0015, Social services revenue expenditure by client group (£ thousand), StatsWales. 

 

 

£0.000

£2.000

£4.000

£6.000

£8.000

£10.000

£12.000

2006-07 2007-08 2008-09 2009-10 2010-11 2011-12 2012-13 2013-14 2014-15

Total older people (aged 65 and over) Adults aged under 65 with a physical disability

Adults aged under 65 with learning disabilities Adults aged under 65 with mental health needs

WALES AVERAGE

Tudalen y pecyn 11



_________________________________________________________________________ 
Page 10 of 18 

24. Exhibit 6 shows that for adults aged under 65 with mental health needs who 
receive Direct Payment average payments have increased by 89.8 per cent 
from £4,552 to £8,640.  The average Direct Payment for Adults under 65 with 
learning disabilities have seen a 50.8 per cent, rising from £7,472 in 2006-07 to 
£11,267 in 2014-15.  Adult under 65 with physical disabilities have seen a more 
marginal 2.9 per cent rise, with the average payment rising from £11,567 to 
£11,905.  However, with regard to Direct Payments for older people there has 
been a marginal fall of 0.6 per cent from £10,924 in 2006-07 to £10,856 in 
20914-15. 

In terms of local authority performance, the average amount of Direct Payments 
paid out has fallen in 12 of the 22 local authorities and currently ranges from 
£6,000 to £20,000.  Exhibit 7 shows that the highest average level of Direct 
Payments in 2014-15 was Wrexham with an average of £20,646.  This is 83 per 
cent higher than the all Wales average and 43 per cent higher than Bridgend, 
the local authority with the second highest Direct Payment average of £14,362.  
Comparatively, the local authority with the lowest average level of Direct 
Payments is Swansea at £6,199, which is 81.2 per cent lower than the all 
Wales average.   

25. Between 2006-07 and 2014-15 twelve local authorities have seen a reduction 
in the average amount of Direct Payments they pay out.  The largest fall has 
been in the Isle of Anglesey which reduced by 50.9 per cent and Blaenau 
Gwent which has seen a reduction of 40.9 per cent.  Of the ten local authorities 
that have seen an increase in average Direct Payments the largest rises have 
been in Flintshire (464 per cent), Denbighshire (74.8 per cent) and Bridgend 
(63.7 per cent). 

Exhibit Seven: Average Direct Payment (£) per client by Welsh local authority 
in 2006-07 and 2014-15  

 

Exhibit source: LGFS0015, Social services revenue expenditure by client group (£ thousand), 
StatsWales. 

£0.000

£5.000

£10.000

£15.000

£20.000

£25.000

2006-07 2014-15

Tudalen y pecyn 12



_________________________________________________________________________ 
Page 11 of 18 

26. Given the wide variation in average payments in local authorities, it is clear that 
the level of Direct Payment a client receives is dependent upon where they live 
and people with broadly the same needs can receive very different standards of 
service on the basis of their postcode rather than their needs.  Some of the 
difference in expenditure is a reflection of the costs of meeting the needs of 
individual clients which will vary from individual circumstance to circumstance.  
However, it also highlights differences in the type of activity and assistance 
which local authorities consider to be eligible for Direct Payments and what 
constitutes a legitimate cost.   

27. Explaining the historically uneven geographical take-up of Direct Payments in 
Wales therefore involves many interrelated factors including:  
a. the presence of a strong advocacy locally and nationally;  
b. effective policy development and ongoing support to service users;  
c. the political culture of the local authority and whether it supports 

personalisation of care and increasing service user choice;  
d. the focus of the local authorities purchasing/commissioning arrangements; 
e. the local market for the supply of social care;  
f. the existence of appropriate infrastructure (specifically, but not exclusively, 

user-led Direct Payments support schemes);  
g. the ability to recruit personal assistants; and   
h. the role of elected member and senior officer champions within local 

authorities.   

28. I acknowledge that local authorities are facing huge financial upheavals and 
need to do more with less.  To meet the challenges of making Direct Payments 
a truly mainstream, accessible and attractive option for the majority of people, 
local authorities need to have an agreed understanding of what is required and 
commit to deliver this.   

Local authorities policies, practices and promotional activity are not 
supporting vulnerable people to apply for and use Direct Payments  

29. In this section I summarise my review of local authority policies and application 
processes for Direct Payments and identify the wide variations that exist.  Since 
April 2003, local authorities have had a legal duty to offer Direct Payments if the 
person is willing and able to manage them, with or without assistance, and if 
they are eligible given all of their circumstances.  More recently the eligibility 
requirements have been extended to those who lack capacity to make this 
decision but have sufficient support. 

30. I found that the fastest rate of growth of Direct Payment take-up is in those 
areas where the local authority provides good quality guidance.  For example, 
in Flintshire and Pembrokeshire, I found there is a clear link between support to 
service users, good quality accessible information about Direct Payments, and 
improving levels of take-up.  In contrast, in some authorities, where there are 
shortcomings in the quality of guidance and information, there is little or no 
growth in take-up of Direct Payments.  Only two local authorities make Direct 

Tudalen y pecyn 13



_________________________________________________________________________ 
Page 12 of 18 

Payment application forms available online to the public (Wrexham and 
Flintshire) and one other plans to do so soon (Cardiff). 

31. Take-up of Direct Payments by older people in Wales remains poor.  I also 
found poor sharing of learning and good practice and limitations in information 
and documentation.  For example, guidance could be considerably improved 
merely by adding an online link to guidance produced by organisations such as 
Age Cymru, or by using another local authority’s guidance.   

32. A number of local authorities and charities produce some high quality guidance 
and use this in their campaigns.  For example, Age Cymru’s Swansea Bay’s 
‘Make a Choice’ Campaign is making a positive impact and is resulting in 
better outcomes and higher take-up by older people.  Pembrokeshire County 
Council’s Direct Payments guidance clearly indicates how the care assessment 
will take place and what the eligibility criteria are.  Powys and Flintshire County 
Councils produce Easy Guides that are written in very clear and accessible 
language; Neath Port Talbot provides very clear and helpful guidance on the 
assessment process; and Newport website includes real and powerful 
examples of how people use their Direct Payments.  Flintshire and Swansea 
encourages users to pool resources and even create new and more 
appropriate care services through social enterprise and cooperation.  In 
Exhibit 8 I highlight the approach in Flintshire as good practice for local 
authorities to consider. 
 

Exhibit Eight - Good Practice Example - Flintshire County Council  

Strong focus on take-up and value for money from its Direct Payment 
scheme  

Increasing take-up of Direct Payments is an explicit priority for the Local 
authority.  The authority focuses on improving the key things that it thinks will 
increase take-up and deliver better value for money.  For example, the local 
authority facilitates an annual Direct Payments open day and actively supports 
the development of the Personal Assistant workforce locally.  The Local 
authority is now also embarking on a new Direct Payments card that it believes 
will reduce costs and increase take-up.  The Local authority carries out risk 
based monitoring of direct payment holders and gives clear guidance for users 
on Keeping Good Records.  Users are encouraged to pool funds to provide 
better value for money, increase their social network and become more 
independent.  Local authority guidance on Direct Payments gives positive 
examples and quotes directly from service users.  Information is written in very 
supportive and helpful language.  As a result of its efforts, over 388 people in 
Flintshire now use Direct Payments which is an increase of 31 per cent since 
2013 and 89 per cent since 2012. 

 

 

Tudalen y pecyn 14



_________________________________________________________________________ 
Page 13 of 18 

33. From the case studies and personal stories included by a few authorities in 
their documentation, it is clear that personalisation of care and Direct Payments 
have been transformative for a significant proportion of people using care and 
support services.  In addition, high performing local authorities are remodelling 
their Direct Payments schemes to help people find jobs by encouraging 
spending on employment training and support, and users are pooling resources 
to create new social enterprises and care services.   

34. Support for carers is being taken seriously in some local authorities.  Networks, 
guidance, respite care and health checks are being offered at Monmouthshire, 
and carers have formed their own support groups and forums.  The best 
guidance is written with the support of users group, and the positive effect on 
quality and accessibility is evident.  User groups viewed Newport as providing 
good support to carers and commented positively on the quality of guidance 
documentation for care workers in Swansea which they highlight nationally as 
good practice. 

35. While some local authorities have risen to the challenge of implementing 
user-centred care through Direct Payments, too many lag behind.  I found that 
in some local authorities the application and assessment process is not as 
accessible and user friendly as it could be, and most guidance is not tailored 
towards those people who would benefit the most from the scheme.   

36. In addition, the Financial Assessment is one of the most inconsistent and poorly 
described elements of the overall care assessment.  My review of the 
information provided by local authorities on the financial assessment found that 
this is often not well written, confusing, and lacks clarity.  In particular, 
assessing partner’s income and value of assets is not clearly highlighted as 
being of interest to local authorities.  Local authorities could do more in 
explaining the financial aspects of the care assessment.  Some local authorities 
do this well but most do not and rely on face-to-face meetings with care 
assessors.  This can result in delays and repeat visits whilst users gather the 
right financial information and get ready for the assessment.  Local authorities 
highlight the length of time it takes for users to come to a decision about paying 
for care, but this decision could be made easier by providing better quality 
guidance at the start of the process.   

37. In Exhibit 9 I highlight the approach of Dudley Metropolitan Borough Council as 
a good practice example on options to increase take up of Direct Payments. 
 

Exhibit Nine: Good Practice Example - Dudley Metropolitan Borough 
Council 

Collaboration with other local authorities and social enterprises to 
develop Direct Payment scheme  

Dudley Metropolitan Borough Council offers its Direct Payments users a series 
of events, training courses, support networks, newsletters and high quality 
online information.  Dudley carries out an annual carer’s survey and reacts 

Tudalen y pecyn 15



_________________________________________________________________________ 
Page 14 of 18 

quickly to suggestions and comments.  Its evaluation of its Managed Account 
Service for people using agencies shows that costs are 25 per cent cheaper 
than previous arrangements.  The Local authority’s Direct Payment scheme is 
managed by a not-for-profit social enterprise which was created by a number of 
users and their families who pooled resources to find better ways to meet their 
well-being needs.  The social enterprise now runs various care services for 
other local authorities and has help from volunteers who use Direct Payments - 
both disabled people and their family members - to provide independent 
advocacy, support and mentoring to new Direct Payment customers.  As a 
result of this and other work, the Local authority has met its ambitious 
corporate target of increasing take up of Direct Payments to over 800 people. 

 

38. What services cost, and who provides what information about what services 
exist locally and regionally, is patchy.  Only six local authorities publish on their 
websites the costs of providing services including hourly rates.  In addition, 
clearly setting out what local authorities are not prepared to pay for could be 
improved.  We found that local authorities are not being clear enough about the 
costs and outgoings that they judge as acceptable for users to qualify for care 
services and Direct Payments.  Some users refer to this as the standard of 
living threshold.   

39. The most common complaints that user groups receive is about lack of 
communication from local authorities on their choices and eligibility.  The most 
common complaints they receive are about the fragmented and often poorly 
coordinated services with a variety of different organisational models and 
structures.  Therefore the role of national networks and coordination is as 
important for users as it is for the local authorities themselves. 

40. I found that only nine of the 22 local authorities publish their eligibility criteria 
on-line despite this being a national standard.  Eligibility costs are an essential 
element of the financial assessment that forms part of the overall health 
assessment of carers and users.  Eligible costs are the cost base from which 
the maximum Direct Payment is determined.  Costs can include direct costs of 
care but for carers could also include things like childcare, housing, transport, 
family support, and respite costs.  Most local authorities do not make this clear 
– only seven local authorities publish clear definitions of eligibility costs.  As a 
result, people may be caused undue anxiety and may be asked to pay for 
services they were not expecting to pay for.   

41. Safeguarding and personal safety information is improving but is not integrated 
into guidance.  Too many local authorities publish safeguarding and Protection 
of Vulnerable Adults information in separate parts of their website and in 
separate documents.  Not enough mention is made in recruiting and managing 
care and personal assistants, despite the good quality guidance provided by 
Carers Wales.  It is unclear why local authorities do not refer to and signpost 
this type of guidance.   

 

Tudalen y pecyn 16



_________________________________________________________________________ 
Page 15 of 18 

42. More positively some local authorities are promoting personal statements from 
service users highlighting the benefits of Direct Payments.  Local authorities 
such as Rhondda Cynon Taf and Torfaen use DVDs, and other local authorities 
such as Flintshire use multi-media outreach workshops to explain the 
advantages and opportunities to improve their independence by using Direct 
Payments.  However, other local authorities do not use such approaches and 
are missing an opportunity to maximise impact and engage service users in 
supporting their own independence.   

43. Local authorities have a discretionary power to charge for non-residential 
services and all use this power in Wales.  There is, however, a maximum 
weekly charge in Wales for people who receive non-residential social care 
services from the local authority – £55 per week up until April 2015, rising to 
£60 per week from April 2015 to March 2016.  Whilst most local authorities 
highlight that contributions may be required, the rate and level of individual 
financial contribution towards care could be much clearer.  This is important 
because it remains one of the highest areas of concern for service users 
according to national user groups.   

44. Service users have the right to use their local authority’s complaints procedure 
if they disagree with a decision about Direct Payments.  A complaint can be 
about any aspect of a local authority’s actions and also the actions of 
organisations that are carrying out services on their behalf.  Each local authority 
must publish details of its complaints procedure and applicants should be 
informed about it.  Whilst all local authorities have a complaints policy, only 
seven highlight the role of the Public Services Ombudsman for Wales. 

45. Giving individuals more choice can help them take control over the way 
services are delivered to meet their assessed needs.  National legislation and 
guidance encourages Direct Payment holders to use their Direct Payments 
flexibly and in innovative ways to meet their needs and achieve the outcomes 
identified in their care plan.  People should find the direct payment process 
accessible, manageable and not over-bureaucratic or intrusive.   

46. Carer groups I spoke to stated that service users are generally not offered a 
wide range of choice of services, and lack the encouragement and guidance 
from their local authority to be independent and inventive.  When local 
authorities do signpost support and advocacy it tends to be their own 
contractors rather than a full range of advocates and suppliers.  As a result, 
users are often offered very narrow choices and only allowed to buy in services 
from a local authority’s preferred contractor.  This restricts an individual from 
seeking to employ their own independent personal assistants on a 
self-employed basis.   

47. As more people take up the opportunity to purchase their own services, 
including employing their own personal assistants, so the commissioning, 
provision and regulating functions of social care agencies will need to change.  
Safeguarding the quality and affordability of social care while public sector 
funding continues to shrink will depend on local authority initiatives to innovate, 
reform funding and adopt preventative care models.   

Tudalen y pecyn 17



_________________________________________________________________________ 
Page 16 of 18 

48. User groups and local authorities I spoke to identify the top priorities for 
improvement for the Welsh Government as greater promotion and support to 
personal assistants and caring as a profession.  They think the Welsh 
Government could do more to give a positive job creation message in the care 
sector.  This is because recruitment of care workers is proving very difficult in 
some areas.  Carer and user groups are also concerned about the lack of 
clarity about proposed changes to the Social Services and Well-Being Act 2014 
and whether it includes extending Direct Payments to cover residential care 
costs. 

49. Learning and sharing good practice is weak amongst local authorities.  The 
inconsistencies and wide variation in guidance and approaches demonstrates 
that national forums and networks are not as effective as they could be.  Good 
practice exists but is not being utilised or even referred to online as a first port 
of call.  A number of good practice case studies are contained in the ‘Think 
Local Act Personal’ website regarding Implementing Direct Payments in 
England but are not referred to in Welsh local authority or Welsh Government 
information.  As local authorities grapple with austerity and funding shortfalls, 
sharing information about what works well and best practice takes on even 
more importance.   

Over half the local authorities in Wales do not have sufficient Direct Payment 
management arrangements to assure themselves and the public that value for 
money is consistently being delivered  

50. This section focuses on how Direct Payments can deliver better value for 
money for citizens.  I provide an analysis of current systems to oversee and 
manage performance and highlight some good practice examples on the 
financial and service benefits arising from increasing use of Direct Payments by 
local authorities in England. 

51. Appropriate risk management and financial monitoring of Direct Payments can 
safeguard public spending and improve public confidence in the system.  This 
is important because austerity, fairness and inequality remain high public 
concerns.  However, whilst assuring value for money is a requirement of 
national guidance and legislation, I found that too many local authorities 
currently have inadequate safeguards in place.  As a result, local authorities do 
not know if public money is being spent wisely.   

52. The case for better value for money from Direct Payments is well made.  
Research in Scotland by a number of leading universities found that the 
evaluation of Direct Payments in practice can be more cost effective for the 
local authority.  The report states: “Advantages of Direct Payments for local 
authorities include more user involvement, fewer complaints and reduced costs 
due to reduced contact with service users once care packages are 
established.”9  

 

                                                           
9 Joint Scottish University study  ‘The Implementation of Direct Payments for People Who Use Care 
Services’ June 2014 

Tudalen y pecyn 18



_________________________________________________________________________ 
Page 17 of 18 

53. Local authorities need to do more in providing ongoing support and guidance to 
recipients of Direct Payments.  Very few local authorities offer annual or regular 
reviews.  This is important because research10 shows that:  “Direct Payments 
recipients need support in understanding the long-term issues that might arise, 
as well as on-going monitoring and advice from knowledgeable practitioners as 
their situations, needs and capabilities change through time.”  Regular review 
also helps ensure better value for money.  I highlight in Exhibit 10 the approach 
of Hartlepool Borough Council as a good practice example for local authorities 
in Wales to consider. 

 

Exhibit Ten - Good Practice Example – Hartlepool Borough Council 

The introduction of personal budgets has enabled the local authority to 
better understand its costs and measure efficiency to show savings  

Hartlepool’s adult social care transformation is often cited as delivering 
significant efficiency savings as a result of the introduction of Direct Payments 
and personalised care.  The monitoring of outcomes and costs was a crucial 
aspect of Hartlepool’s transformation programme and helped the Local 
Authority to build local support, promote take-up, and overcome negative 
perceptions.  Based on the local authority’s own assessment, its costs were 
estimated at £12.21 per hour for agency home care provision, compared to 
£10.14 per hour under Direct Payments.  Evaluation by the Social Care 
Institute for Excellence in 2011 and 2013 shows that Hartlepool is one example 
that demonstrates “when people have choice and control over their care and 
support, most commonly through the use of personal budgets and Direct 
Payments, then this can result in efficiencies such as waste and overhead cost 
reduction, improved value for money and better outcomes for both service 
users and carers.”11 Direct Payment information is now fully integrated into 
other social care guidance and is not offered as a ‘bolt on’ or addition to 
mainstream care and support services. 

 

54. Most local authorities lack the management oversight and checks that make 
sure that payments are in line with care plans and are delivering better 
outcomes for users.  Some local authorities, such as Neath Port Talbot, 
Flintshire and Pembrokeshire, make it very clear what is expected from users 
and have policy guidance to support this, –– and have a programme of risk 
based reviews in place.   

 

 

                                                           
10 Arksey, H.  and Baxter, K.  British Journal of Social Work – 42:1, pages 147-164, 2012. 
11 Social Care Institute for Excellence, Personalisation, productivity and efficiency, May 2011 and 
follow up in September 2013. 

Tudalen y pecyn 19



_________________________________________________________________________ 
Page 18 of 18 

55. According to a UK wide national report about the personalisation of care by the 
Royal Society of Arts in 2014 “the introduction of Direct Payments and personal 
budgets was accompanied by concerns about escalating costs to local 
authorities...  There is little evidence across the UK of (this).”12  My review found 
that very few local authority committee papers or internal reports really address 
these concerns.  As a result local authorities are not pursuing personalisation 
and promoting personal independence as effectively as they could. 

56. Benchmarking is also consistently poor.  Few local authorities demonstrate that 
the Executive or Scrutiny Committees review and discuss Direct Payment at a 
strategic level, and only two refer to Direct Payments in annual reports by 
Directors of Social Services.  I found that only one local authority publishes 
on-line comparative performance information.  As a result it is difficult to judge if 
local authorities are doing all they can to deliver good levels of value for money. 

57. Local authority care managers are aware of these difficulties.  One local 
authority Care Manager stated that: “There is a lot of unspent money sitting in 
people’s bank accounts that if we were efficient in getting it back, we would be 
able to re-use for other care packages.” Another local authority Manager said: 
“It is difficult to evaluate value for money.  If the outcomes from the assessment 
are not clear, you cannot monitor quality of outcomes and value for money.” 

58. Managed accounts and greater use of personal assistants are seen by local 
authorities as having the potential for delivering better value for money and 
some local authorities such as Torfaen and Newport provide very good 
guidance on recruiting and employing personal assistants.  Guidance produced 
by Carers Wales13 on personal assistants is of high quality and could be used 
to support local authorities to grow the number of personal assistants.  
However, less than half the local authorities in Wales highlight or link to this.  
As a result the opportunities for delivering better value for money are not being 
maximised.   

59. Local authorities and user groups I talked to told me that the top priorities for 
local authorities are in: 
a. promoting Direct Payments to older people; 
b. providing better and more consistent guidance; 
c. streamlining the Direct Payments process from first enquiry to approval 

and payment;  
d. reducing the amount of paperwork that needs to be completed; and  
e. promoting more innovation and social enterprise by encouraging users to 

pool resources and buy local services.   

60. At present they think there is too much variety in the approaches of local 
authorities across Wales and service users are receiving very different and 
inconsistent standards of service.   

                                                           
12 Royal Society of Arts, Personalisation: lessons from social care, April 2012. 
13 Carers Wales are part of Carers UK and campaign with carers providing support, research, good 
practice and policy guidance. 

Tudalen y pecyn 20



Cynulliad Cenedlaethol Cymru – Y Pwyllgor Cyfrifon Cyhoeddus 
 
Buddsoddiad Llywodraeth Cymru yn Isadeiledd Band Eang y 
Genhedlaeth Nesaf 
 
Ymateb Llywodraeth Cymru 
 
Mae’r prosiect mwyaf blaenllaw ar gyfer buddsoddi mewn Isadeiledd Band 
Eang y Genhedlaeth Nesaf, sef Cyflymu Cymru, yn parhau i sicrhau y gall 
cartrefi a busnesau ym mhob cwr o Gymru fanteisio ar fand eang cyflym iawn.  
Erbyn mis Hydref 2015, roedd tua 532,000 eiddo wedi cael mynediad i fand 
eang cyflym iawn o ganlyniad i’r prosiect. Mae’r rhain yn eiddo na fyddai wedi 
gallu cael mynediad i fand eang cyflym iawn fel arall. Mae’r Pwyllgor yn 
cydnabod bod cynnydd yn cael ei wneud.    
 
Mae’r Pwyllgor yn pwysleisio rheolaeth y contract. Yn enwedig, mae’n nodi’r 
darpariaethau yn y contract sy’n diogelu buddsoddiad y sector cyhoeddus ac 
yn trosglwyddo’r risg i BT. Hefyd, mae’n annog y dylid rhannu’r rhain ar draws 
Llywodraeth Cymru.  
 
Mae’r adroddiad hefyd yn cydnabod yr anhawster y dasg, ac mae’n iawn i 
wneud hynny: mae’r prosiect ar raddfa fawr iawn ac mae’r heriau sydd 
ynghlwm wrth ddarparu gwybodaeth am gyflwyno prosiect o’r maint a’r natur 
hwn.  
 
 
Argymhelliad 1: Mae’r Pwyllgor yn argymell bod Llywodraeth Cymru yn 
darparu sicrwydd na fydd yr estyniad i’r prosiect yn arwain at oedi pellach ar 
gyfer adeiladau a gafodd eu cynnwys yn y contract gwreiddiol ac yn parhau i 
fonitro cynnydd BT i sicrhau bod y prosiect yn cael ei gyflwyno o fewn yr 
amserlen ddiwygiedig. 
 
Ymateb 
 

Derbynnir yn rhannol: Nid yw’r Pwyllgor wedi llawn werthfawrogi’r heriau sydd 
ynghlwm wrth gyflawni prosiect mor gymhleth ac ar raddfa mor fawr. Ni fyddai 
dim ond ychwanegu’r eiddo newydd at ddiwedd y gwaith gwreiddiol yn 
galluogi BT i gyflawni’r eiddo sy’n weddill yn y ford fwyaf effeithlon a chost-
effeithiol, ac ni fyddai’n sicrhau gwerth am arian i’r pwrs cyhoeddus. 
 
Mae’r eiddo newydd o fewn yr estyniad o’r prosiect wedi’u ‘blendio’ i mewn i’r 
ardal ymyrryd gyflawn ac mae cynllun gweithredu hollol newydd wedi’i baratoi 
er mwyn sicrhau y caiff gymaint o eiddo â phosib yng Nghymru fanteisio ar y 
cynllun. Bydd y cynllun newydd yn golygu bod yr amserlenni ar gyfer darparu i 
rai eiddo yn newid – mae hynny’n anochel. 
 
Y fantais o’r blendio hwn, a hynny o dan y contract cyfredol, yn hytrach na 
gorfod negodi o’r newydd, yw y gellir cadw’r manteision a’r gweithdrefnau 
diogelu y mae archwilwyr wedi cydnabod eu bod yn gryfder sylweddol yn y 
contract, sy’n unigryw i Gymru. Gallai ail-negodi’r contract fod wedi effeithio ar 

Tudalen y pecyn 21

Eitem 3



elfennau eraill o’r contract, gan arwain at sefyllfa lai ffafriol i Lywodraeth 
Cymru, o ran lefel yr adfachu er enghraifft. 
 
Caiff cynnydd a wneir o dan y contract ei fonitro drwy gyfres o gyfarfodydd 
rheolaidd rhwng Llywodraeth Cymru a BT. Mae hyn yn cynnwys cyfarfodydd 
bob pythefnos i fynd i’r afael â materion gweithredol, cyfarfodydd bwrdd 
gweithredu misol i drafod y gwaith ac i wneud penderfyniadau gweithredol ac, 
yn olaf, cyfarfod bwrdd y rhaglen lle caiff penderfyniadau strategol eu gwneud. 
Mae bwrdd y rhaglen hefyd yn cynnwys cynrychiolaeth gan y diwydiant yn 
ehangach. 
 
 
Argymhelliad 2: Mae’r Pwyllgor yn argymell bod Llywodraeth Cymru 
yn darparu manylion ar y cynllun i ddisodli Mynediad i Fand Eang 
Cymru ac i ddarparu mynediad at fand eang y genhedlaeth nesaf i bob 
safle ar draws Cymru. 
 
Ymateb 
 
Derbynnir: Cafodd y cynllun Allwedd Band Eang Cymru ei lansio ar 4 Ionawr 
2016. Gwnaeth y Dirprwy Weinidog Sgiliau a Thechnoleg ddatganiad 
ysgrifenedig ar 15 Rhagfyr yn manylu ar y cynllun newydd: 
 
Bydd y cynllun newydd yn cyllido (neu’n rhannol gyllido) costau gosod 
cysylltiadau band eang a fydd yn gweddnewid cyflymderau lawrlwytho ar 
gyfer cartrefi a busnesau yng Nghymru. Byddai unrhyw eiddo preswyl neu 
eiddo busnes nad yw’n gallu cael gwasanaeth 30 megabeit yr eiliad yn 
gymwys i gael taleb. Mae dwy lefel  o gyllid ar gael, yn dibynnu ar anghenion 
y defnyddiwr a’r cyflymder sydd ei angen; £400 ar gyfer cyflymderau 
lawrlwytho rhwng 10 a 20 megabeit yr eiliad, a £800 ar gyfer cyflymderau 
lawrlwytho o 30 megabeit ac uwch. Bydd y cynllun yn ‘niwtral’ o ran 
technoleg; bydd yn defnyddio ystod o dechnolegau gan gynnwys lloeren, 
diwifr a 4G i sicrhau band eang cyflym iawn. 
 
 
Argymhelliad 3: Mae’r Pwyllgor yn argymell bod Llywodraeth Cymru 

yn mynd ati i gysylltu â darparwyr gwasanaethau i ganfod y safleoedd 
hyn ac i ddod o hyd i ateb i gyflwyno band eang y genhedlaeth nesaf 
i’r safleoedd anodd eu cyrraedd hynny. 
 
Ymateb 
 

Derbynnir: Mae’r cynllun Allwedd Band Eang Cymru newydd yn darparu 
datrysiad i eiddo yng Nghymru sydd angen cysylltiad band eang cyflym iawn. 
Yn ogystal, fe archwiliwn sut y gellid defnyddio’r gronfa fuddsoddi, sydd wedi’i 
chreu gan adfachu cyllid, i ehangu band eang cyflym iawn ymhellach. Mae 
Llywodraeth Cymru wedi ymgysylltu â darparwyr rhyngrwyd lleol a 
chenedlaethol. 
 
 

Tudalen y pecyn 22



Argymhelliad 4: Mae’r Pwyllgor yn argymell bod Llywodraeth Cymru 
yn darparu’r wybodaeth ddiweddaraf ar y cynnydd o ran cyflwyno i 
safleoedd anodd eu cyrraedd ddim hwyrach na mis Medi 2016, gan 
gynnwys: 

 y wybodaeth ddiweddaraf o ran cyflawni 100 megabeit yr eiliad ar gyfer 
40 y cant o safleoedd; 

 gwybodaeth am pryd fydd pobl yn cael gwybod os nad ydynt yn 
debygol o gael band eang y genhedlaeth nesaf drwy’r contract Cyflymu 
Cymru; 

 manylion yr opsiynau fforddiadwy sydd ar gael iddynt; 

 nifer y safleoedd sydd wedi’u pasio; a’r 

 wybodaeth ddiweddaraf ar yr argymhellion yn adroddiad Archwilydd 
Cyffredinol Cymru. 

 
Ymateb 
 

Derbynnir. 
 
 
Argymhelliad 5: Mae’r Pwyllgor yn argymell bod Llywodraeth Cymru 

yn darparu cadarnhad ynghylch llwyddiant cyflwyno Cyflymu Cymru, ac 
a yw wedi cael yr holl gyllid ERDF sydd ar gael o ganlyniad i hynny. 
 
Ymateb 
 
Derbynnir: Mae Prosiect Cyflymu Cymru yn llwyddiant ysgubol. Erbyn diwedd 
mis Hydref, roedd tua 532,000 eiddo wedi cael mynediad i fand eang cyflym 
iawn o ganlyniad i’r prosiect. Mae’r rhain yn eiddo na fyddai wedi gallu cael 
mynediad i fand eang cyflym iawn fel arall. Mae’r Pwyllgor yn cydnabod bod 
cynnydd yn cael ei wneud. Mae darpariaeth BT yn parhau i fodloni targedau 
chwarterol y contract. 
 
Fel y mae’r adroddiad yn pwysleisio, a hynny’n gywir, cafodd yr amserlen 
wreiddiol ar gyfer cyllid Ewropeaidd ei chwtogi o chwe mis. Cafodd hyn effaith 
sylweddol. Erbyn diwedd y rownd gyllido, roedd cyllid ERDF ar gyfer eiddo 
wedi’i dynnu i lawr. Cytunodd WEFO y gellid gwneud cais arall o dan y 
rhaglen cronfeydd strwythurol newydd. 
 
 
Argymhelliad 6: Mae’r Pwyllgor hefyd yn argymell y dylai 

Llywodraeth Cymru fyfyrio ar y gwersi a ddysgwyd o gynllunio a rheoli 
contract Cyflymu Cymru’n gyffredinol yn ei chanllawiau ei hun ar reoli 
rhaglenni a phrosiectau. 
 
Ymateb 
 
Derbynnir: Caiff nifer o adolygiadau ‘gwersi a ddysgwyd’ eu cynnal gan dîm y 
prosiect, er enghraifft ar gyfer yr UE fel rhan o’i phrosesau cwblhau prosiect. 
Caiff yr hyn a ddaw o’r rhain ei fwydo i’r fframwaith ‘gwersi a ddysgwyd’ 
corfforaethol er mwyn rheoli’r rhaglen a’r prosiect. 

Tudalen y pecyn 23



Bydd swyddogion yn gweithio gyda Gwerth Cymru i sicrhau bod gwersi’n cael 
eu dysgu o ran caffael, a bod y gwersi hynny’n cael ei rhannu â phawb sydd â 
chyfrifoldeb dros gaffael o fewn Llywodraeth Cymru. 
 
Bydd Llywodraeth Cymru’n rhannu’r gwersi a ddysgwyd gyda gweithwyr ym 
maes contractau a chaffael ar draws Llywodraeth Cymru a’r sector cyhoeddus 
ehangach er mwyn codi ymwybyddiaeth o’r ford yr aeth Cyflymu Cymru ati. 
 
 
Argymhelliad 7: Mae’r Pwyllgor yn argymell bod Llywodraeth Cymru 

yn sicrhau bod yr holl staff perthnasol yn cael hyfforddiant gloywi ar 
drafodaethau contract yn ôl y gofyn a bod yr holl ganllawiau yn cael eu 
hadolygu’n rheolaidd a’u bod ar gael i staff. 
 
Ymateb 
 

Derbynnir: Fel rhan o’r adolygiadau gwersi a ddysgwyd, bydd tîm y prosiect 
yn rhannu gwersi a ddysgwyd o ran negodiadau’r contract gyda gweithwyr ym 
maes contractau a chaffael ar draws Llywodraeth Cymru. Caiff y gwersi hyn 
hefyd eu rhannu ag arweinwyr o fewn Llywodraeth Cymru yn y meysydd hyn 
er mwyn iddynt eu hystyried mewn perthynas â datblygu proffesiynol parhaus. 
 
Mae Llywodraeth Cymru yn cyflwyno hyfforddiant gorfodol ym maes rheoli 
contractau fel rhan o’i rhaglen Paratoi ar gyfer y Dyfodol. Mae hefyd yn 
cyflwyno pecyn cymorth yn y maes. Hefyd fel rhan o’r rhaglen hon, caiff 
hyfforddiant negodi contractau ei ddarparu i bob gweithiwr ym maes caffael o 
fewn Llywodraeth Cymru. 
 
 
Argymhelliad 8: Mae’r Pwyllgor yn argymell bod Llywodraeth Cymru yn 

gweithio gyda BT, fel mater o flaenoriaeth, er mwyn gwella effeithiolrwydd ei 
strategaeth gyfathrebu, gan gynnwys y wefan, ar gyfer gweddill y cyflwyniad a 
bod Llywodraeth Cymru yn rhoi’r wybodaeth ddiweddaraf i’r Pwyllgor am y 
newidiadau a wnaed i’r strategaeth i fynd i’r afael â’n pryderon.  
 
Ymateb 
 
Derbynnir: Mae’r prif feysydd o bryder a nodir gan y Pwyllgor yn ymwneud â 
darparu gwell gwybodaeth o ran pryd y gall cartrefi a busnesau ddisgwyl gallu 
cael mynediad i fand eang cyflym iawn drwy brosiect Cyflymu Cymru. Fel y 
mae’r adroddiad yn cydnabod, mae sawl trefniant ar waith gan gynnwys:  rhoi 
llenyddiaeth drwy’r drws yn yr ardaloedd hynny sydd ar fin mynd yn fyw, 
hysbysiadau dros e-bost i fwy na 30,000 o bobl sydd wedi cofrestru ar y 
wefan, gwybodaeth ar y cyfryngau cymdeithasol, cysylltiadau cyhoeddus yn 
lleol a’r nodwedd ‘pryd a ble’ ar y wefan.  
 
Yn ogystal, ceir hysbysebion a digwyddiadau i ysgogi pobl i fanteisio ar y cyfle 
i godi ymwybyddiaeth am argaeledd band eang ac i gyfeirio pobl at y wefan 
am ragor o wybodaeth. Mae’r ffaith fod llawer wedi cofrestru ar-lein a nifer yr 
ymweliadau â’r wefan yn brawf fod hyn yn llwyddiant. 

Tudalen y pecyn 24



 
Mae’r adroddiad hefyd yn pwysleisio’r anawsterau o ran darparu’r dyddiadau 
y bydd pobl yn gallu cael mynediad i fand eang cyflym iawn arnynt. Mae hyn 
oherwydd maint y rhaglen a’r  anwadalrwydd yn y cynllun gweithredu – gall 
dyddiadau gweithredu newid am amryw resymau, gan gynnwys argaeledd 
safleoedd ar gyfer cabinetau, heriau peirianneg ac, fel a nodir yn yr 
adroddiad, yr angen i ddelio â rhywogaethau gwarchodedig, megis madfallod 
dŵr . 
 
Fodd bynnag, mae gwaith wedi’i wneud i wella’r adran ‘pryd a ble’ ar y wefan. 
Mae nodwedd newydd wedi’i ychwanegu sy’n rhoi gwell syniad i ymwelwyr â’r 
safle pryd fydd y prosiect ar gael iddynt.  Wrth roi eu cod post neu rif ffôn eu 
heiddo, dangosir ym mha gam y mae eu heiddo o ran y cynllun gweithredu: er 
enghraifft, y cam cynllunio, y cam adeiladu ac ati. Hefyd, nodir pa mor hir y 
mae’n debygol o fod cyn i’w cabinet lleol fynd yn fyw. Ar hyn o bryd, dim ond 
ar gyfer eiddo a fydd yn derbyn ‘ffeibr i’r cabinet’ y mae hyn. Fodd bynnag 
mae datrysiad ‘ffeibr i’r eiddo’ a leiniau ‘cyfnewid yn unig’ ar y gweill, disgwylir 
gallu darparu hyn ym mis Mawrth 2016.  
 
 
Argymhelliad 9: Mae’r Pwyllgor yn argymell bod Llywodraeth Cymru yn rhoi 
ystyriaeth, mewn egwyddor, i gynnwys, fel isafswm mewn contractau yn y 
dyfodol, manylion am dargedau dyheadol a’r disgwyliadau o ran erbyn pryd y 
dylid eu cyrraedd. 
 
Ymateb 
 
Derbynnir: Bydd penderfyniadau ynghylch p’un ai i gynnwys targedau 
dyheadol mewn perthynas â chontractau yn y dyfodol yn ddibynnol ar destun 
y contract a natur y gwasanaethau sy’n cael eu caffael.  
 
 
Argymhelliad 10: Mae’r Pwyllgor yn argymell bod y wybodaeth ddiweddaraf 
yn cael ei rhoi i’r Pwyllgor, am y gwaith i wella cyfathrebu a marchnata 
ynghylch manteision mynediad at fand eang cyflym iawn, 
heb fod yn hwyrach na mis Medi 2016. 
 
Ymateb 
 
Derbynnir. 

Tudalen y pecyn 25



 

Llinell Uniongyrchol:  029 2032 0510          E-bost  huw.vaughan.thomas@archwilio.cymru 

Mr Darren Millar AC 
Cadeirydd y Pwyllgor Cyfrifon Cyhoeddus 
Cynulliad Cenedlaethol Cymru 
Bae Caerdydd 
Caerdydd  CF99 1NA 
 

 Dyddiad:  1 Chwefror 2016 
 Ein cyf: HVT/HVT2481/fgb 
 Tudalen: 1 o 3 

 

Annwyl Darren 

BUDDSODDIAD LLYWODRAETH CYMRU YN SEILWAITH BAND EANG Y GENHEDLAETH NESAF - 
YMATEB LLYWODRAETH CYMRU 

Gofynnai llythyr y Dirprwy Glerc, dyddiedig 25 Ionawr, am fy nghyngor ynglŷn ag ymateb 
Llywodraeth Cymru i adroddiad y Pwyllgor ar Fuddsoddiad Llywodraeth Cymru yn 
Seilwaith Band Eang y Genhedlaeth Nesaf a gyhoeddwyd ym mis Tachwedd 2015. Mae 
Llywodraeth Cymru wedi dweud ei bod yn derbyn naw allan o 10 argymhelliad y 
Pwyllgor, gyda'r argymhelliad sy'n weddill wedi ei dderbyn yn rhannol. Rwyf yn tynnu 
sylw isod at rai meysydd lle y bydd y Pwyllgor efallai yn dymuno gofyn am ragor o 
wybodaeth neu eglurhad.   

Argymhelliad 1: Yn rhannol y mae Llywodraeth Cymru wedi derbyn yr argymhelliad 
hwn, gan adlewyrchu'r ffaith fod y cyfnodau amser, ar gyfer gosod mewn rhai adeiladau 
yn y prosiect gwreiddiol, wedi newid yn dilyn rhoi estyniad i’r prosiect, sydd wedi arwain 
at gynllun gosod newydd. Efallai ei bod yn ymddangos yn rhesymol nad gadael yr holl 
adeiladau newydd tan ddiwedd y prosiect fyddai'r dull gosod mwyaf effeithlon. Fodd 
bynnag, a derbyn pryderon y Pwyllgor ynghylch effaith ymestyn y prosiect, gallai'r 
ymateb fod wedi bod o gymorth drwy ddweud faint o adeiladau y mae'r newidiadau i’r 
rhaglen osod yn effeithio arnynt. Gallai hefyd fod wedi dweud i ba raddau y mae'r 
adeiladau hyn wedi eu clystyru mewn ardaloedd neilltuol, a sut y mae unrhyw oedi cyn 
gosod yn cael ei gyfleu i'r bobl y bydd hynny’n effeithio arnynt.    

Mae Llywodraeth Cymru yn dweud, pe na bai wedi mabwysiadu'r dull o 'doddi' adeiladau 
newydd i mewn i'r cytundeb gwreiddiol, y gallai ail drafod telerau'r contract fod wedi 
arwain at sefyllfa lai ffafriol i Lywodraeth Cymru. Efallai y bydd y Pwyllgor yn dymuno 
gofyn i Lywodraeth Cymru pam y mae'n teimlo y byddai wedi bod mewn sefyllfa wannach 
i drafod na phan osododd y contract gwreiddiol.   

Tudalen y pecyn 26



 Dyddiad: 1 Chwefror 2016 
 Ein cyf: HVT/  2481/fgb 
 Tudalen 2 o 3 

 

Argymhelliad 2: Mae Llywodraeth Cymru yn derbyn yr argymhelliad hwn ac fe lansiodd 
Gynllun newydd Allwedd Band Eang Cymru ym mis Ionawr 2016. Fodd bynnag, efallai y 
bydd y Pwyllgor yn dymuno cael eglurhad gan Lywodraeth Cymru beth fydd cyfraniad y 
cynllun o ran sicrhau mynediad at fand eang y genhedlaeth nesaf i'r holl adeiladau sy'n 
gymwys. Dengys ymateb Llywodraeth Cymru fod peth o'r cyllid ar gael ar gyfer 
cyflymderau rhwng 10 ac 20 Mbps. I'r adeiladau fydd yn derbyn mynediad drwy brosiect 
Superfast Cymru mae band eang y genhedlaeth nesaf yn golygu cyflymder dros 24 
Mbps.   

Efallai y bydd y Pwyllgor hefyd yn dymuno cael syniad gan Llywodraeth Cymru o gost 
bosibl gosod band eang y genhedlaeth nesaf i drigolion neu fusnesau mewn adeiladau 
anodd eu cyrraedd (uwchlaw gwerth y talebau a gynigir).   

Argymhelliad 3: Mae Llywodraeth Cymru yn derbyn yr argymhelliad hwn, er y bydd y 
Pwyllgor efallai yn dymuno ystyried a yw lefel y manylder a ddarparwyd gymaint ag y 
disgwyliai. Er enghraifft, gallai Llywodraeth Cymru fod wedi rhoi manylion mwy penodol 
ynghylch y ffordd y mae wedi ymgysylltu â darparwyr gwasanaeth rhyngrwyd, ac a 
wnaeth yr ymgysylltiad hwnnw arwain at nodi'r adeiladau anodd eu cyrraedd, a allai elwa 
o gynllun newydd Allwedd Band Eang Cymru. 

Efallai y bydd y Pwyllgor yn dymuno gofyn i Lywodraeth Cymru roi rhagor o wybodaeth 
am lefel debygol y gronfa fuddsoddi y mae Llywodraeth Cymru yn dweud fydd yn cynnal 
y cynllun newydd. Rwyf yn cymryd mai'r mecanwaith adfachu yw'r trefniant y cyfeiriais 
ato yn fy adroddiad, sef, os bydd y nifer sy'n defnyddio band eang y genhedlaeth nesaf 
yn ardal ymyrryd Superfast Cymru yn fwy na 21 y cant yn ystod oes contract Superfast 
Cymru hyd ddiwedd 2023, y bydd BT yn dosbarthu 50 y cant o'i elw, ar ei wasanaethau 
cyfanwerthu mewn perthynas â'r ardal ymyrryd, yn ôl i Lywodraeth Cymru. Bydd y swm a 
gaiff ei adfachu felly'n dibynnu ar lefel y defnydd. 

Argymhelliad 5: Mae Llywodraeth Cymru yn derbyn yr argymhelliad hwn. Fodd bynnag, 
efallai y bydd y Pwyllgor yn dymuno gofyn i Lywodraeth Cymru am fwy o fanylion 
ynghylch y cais am gyllid WEFO dan raglen newydd y cronfeydd strwythurol, gan 
gynnwys gwerth y cyllid ac ar gyfer beth y mae wedi ei fwriadu. Mae'n aneglur a yw hyn 
yn ymwneud â'r cais a ddisgrifiwyd yn fy adroddiad i gefnogi gweithgarwch ymelwa. Mae 
ymateb Llywodraeth Cymru fel arall yn awgrymu bod y cyllid hwn ar gyfer cynorthwyo i 
gwblhau prosiect Superfast Cymru.   

Nodaf fod yr ymateb i'r argymhelliad hwn yn datgan bod Superfast Cymru wedi bod yn 
llwyddiant digymysg. Cyfeiriai fy adroddiad at y cynnydd rhesymol oedd yn cael ei 
wneud, dull caffael effeithiol contract Superfast Cymru yn gyffredinol, a rhai o'r buddion 
ehangach oedd wedi deillio o'r contract. Er hynny, mae'n amlwg bod lle i wella ar rai 
agweddau ar y lledaeniad, yn enwedig gyda golwg ar gyfathrebu. At hynny, mae gwerth 

Tudalen y pecyn 27



 Dyddiad: 1 Chwefror 2016 
 Ein cyf: HVT/  2481/fgb 
 Tudalen 3 o 3 

 

am arian prosiect Superfast Cymru yn y pen draw yn dibynnu ar y graddau y defnyddir 
band eang y genhedlaeth nesaf ac y gwneir yn fawr o'i fanteision.   

Argymhelliad 6: Mae Llywodraeth Cymru yn derbyn yr argymhelliad hwn, er y byddai 
awgrym o'r cyfnodau amser a fwriadwyd ar gyfer y camau gweithredu cysylltiedig wedi 
bod o fudd.    

Argymhelliad 8: Mae Llywodraeth Cymru wedi derbyn yr argymhelliad hwn ac mae'n 
tynnu sylw at newidiadau a wnaed yng ngwefan Superfast Cymru i wella'r wybodaeth a 
roddir i ymwelwyr â'r wefan. Mae staff Swyddfa Archwilio Cymru wedi ymweld â'r wefan 
eto ac yn ystyried bod y wybodaeth sydd ar gael yn edrych fel pe bai wedi ei gwella'n 
sylweddol. 

Dywed Llywodraeth Cymru fod llwyddiant hysbysebu a digwyddiadau yn dod yn amlwg 
drwy'r niferoedd o ymwelwyr â'r wefan a chofrestriadau ar-lein; fodd bynnag, nid yw nifer 
y trawiadau rhyngrwyd ynddo'i hun yn awgrymu llwyddiant. Argymhellai fy adroddiad 
edrych i weld a yw busnesau a thrigolion yn fodlon ar lefel y wybodaeth y maent yn ei 
derbyn ac efallai y bydd y Pwyllgor yn dymuno holi a yw Llywodraeth Cymru wedi 
gwneud unrhyw beth yn y cyfeiriad hwnnw, yn enwedig o ystyried y newidiadau diweddar 
yn y wefan. Fel arall, gallai'r Pwyllgor newydd fynd i'r afael â'r mater hwn pan fydd yn 
ystyried y diweddariad a addawyd mewn ymateb i Argymhelliad 4 yn adroddiad y 
Pwyllgor. Dylai hwn gynnwys diweddariad ar y camau a gymerwyd mewn ymateb i fy 
argymhellion i fy hun. 

Rwyf yn deall bod y clercod yn disgwyl derbyn diweddariad ar wahân gan BT am y 
cynnydd dros y misoedd diwethaf ac mae Llywodraeth Cymru wedi cadarnhau ei 
hymrwymiad i roi diweddariad ar nifer o faterion erbyn mis Medi 2016. Hwyrach y bydd y 
Pwyllgor yn dymuno tynnu sylw at y pwnc hwn yn ei adroddiad etifeddiaeth arfaethedig 
ac efallai y bydd o werth i'r Pwyllgor newydd gasglu rhagor o dystiolaeth lafar gan 
Lywodraeth Cymru a BT ar sail y diweddariad hwnnw. Pan fyddaf yn ystyried y sefyllfa yr 
adroddir amdani wrth y Pwyllgor newydd yn Hydref 2016, byddaf hefyd yn ystyried a oes 
achos i wneud gwaith dilynol, gan ganolbwyntio’n benodol ar ledaeniad prosiect 
Superfast Cymru neu ar ymelwa'n ehangach ar fanteision mynediad at fand eang y 
genhedlaeth nesaf. 

Yn gywir 

 
HUW VAUGHAN THOMAS 

ARCHWILYDD CYFFREDINOL CYMRU 

Tudalen y pecyn 28



 

 

Julie James 

Deputy Minister for Skills and Technology 

Welsh Government 

Cathays Park 

Cardiff CF10 3NQ 

 

 

4 February 2016 

Welsh Government Investment in Next Generation Broadband Infrastructure  

Dear Julie 

Thank you for writing with the Welsh Government’s response to the 

recommendations contained in the Public Accounts Committee report on Welsh 

Government Investment in Next Generation Broadband Infrastructure 

We would be grateful if you could provide further information and clarification on 

the following points:  

Recommendation 1: The Committee understands why the Welsh Government has 

partially accepted this recommendation, reflecting the fact that the timescales for 

deploying to some premises in the original project have changed following a 

project extension which has resulted in a new deployment plan. Given the 

Committee’s concerns about the impact of the project extension, your response 

might have indicated the number of premises that are affected by changes to the 

scheduled roll-out, the extent to which these premises are clustered in particular 

areas, and how any delays in roll-out are being communicated to those affected. 

The response indicates that the Welsh Government has not taken an approach to 

‘blend’ new premises into the original contract, a renegotiation to the contract 

that may have led to a less favourable position for the Welsh Government. Can 

you clarify why the Welsh Government feels it would have been in a weaker 

negotiating position than when it let the original contract? 

Y Pwyllgor Cyfrifon Cyhoeddus | Public Accounts Committee 
PAC(4)-09-16 P3

Tudalen y pecyn 29



 

Recommendation 2: Can you clarify the contribution of the scheme in delivering 

access to next generation broadband to all eligible premises? The Committee 

would also welcome an indication of the possible cost of next generation 

broadband installation for residents or businesses in difficult-to-reach premises 

(over and above the value of the vouchers on offer). 

Recommendation 3: Can you provide more specific detail on how the Welsh 

Government has engaged with internet service providers, and whether this 

engagement has resulted in the identification of difficult-to-reach premises that 

might benefit from the new Access Broadband Cymru scheme? 

The Committee would also welcome additional information about the likely level 

of the investment fund that the Welsh Government indicates will support the new 

scheme. The Committee assumes that the clawback mechanism is the 

arrangement the Auditor General for Wales referred to in his report? 

Recommendation 5: Can you provide more detail on the application for WEFO 

funding under the new structural funds programme, including the value of the 

funding and what it is for.  

Recommendation 6: It would be helpful if you can provide an indication of 

planned timescales for the related actions your officials will be taking forward. 

Recommendation 8: The response states that changes have been made to the 

Superfast Cymru website to improve the information given to website visitors. 

However, having visited the website again, the Committee does not consider that 

the information available looks to have been significantly enhanced. The response 

states that the success of advertising and events is borne out by the numbers of 

visitors to the website and on-line registrations; however, the number of internet 

hits does not automatically suggest success. We would welcome further 

information as to what enhancements have bene made to the website and how 

you are analysing the number of internet hits against success.  

The Committee looks forward to receiving this clarification. 

 

Yours sincerely, 

 

Darren Millar AM 

Chair 

Tudalen y pecyn 30



Y Pwyllgor Cyfrifon Cyhoeddus | Public Accounts Committee 
PAC(4)-09-16 P4

Tudalen y pecyn 31



Tudalen y pecyn 32



Mae cyfyngiadau ar y ddogfen hon

Tudalen y pecyn 33

Eitem 4Yn rhinwedd paragraff(au) vi o Reol Sefydlog 17.42


	Agenda
	2.1 Llythyr gan Archwilydd Cyffredinol Cymru
	3 Buddsoddiad Llywodraeth Cymru yn Isadeiledd Band Eang y Genhedlaeth Nesaf: Trafod ymatebion i adroddiad y Pwyllgor
	PAC(4)-09-16 P2 - Llythyr gan Archwilydd Cyffredinol Cymru - 1 Chwefror 2016
	PAC(4)-09-16 P3 - Llythyr gan y Cadeirydd at y Dirprwy Weinidog Sgiliau a Thechnoleg - 4 Chwefror 2016 (Saesneg yn Unig)
	PAC(4)-09-16 P4 - Gwybodaeth bellach gan Lywodraeth Cymru (Saesneg yn Unig)

	4 Cronfa Fuddsoddi Gwyddorau Bywyd Cymru



